Consolidated Annual Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Company Number: 11464274

Nash Squared Holdings Limited (formerly Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited)



Nash Squared Holdings Limited (formerly Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited)

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Contents		Page
Contents		01
Strategic report		02 - 05
Directors report		06 - 07
Statement of directors responsibilities		. 08
Independent auditor's report		09 - 11
Consolidated statement of profit and loss and con comprehensive income	isolidated statement of other	12
Consolidated statement of financial position		13
Consolidated statement of changes in equity	•	. 14
Consolidated statement of cash flows		15
Notes to the consolidated financial statements		16 - 47
Company statement of financial position		48
Company statement of changes in equity ,		49
Notes to the company financial statements		50 - 51
Full list of subsidiaries of Nash Squared Holdings Lim	nited	52 - 53
Offices		54
Officers and professional advisers		· 55

Governance

Annual Report and Financial Statements Strategic Report

Strategic Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Strategic Report

The directors present their strategic report on the Group for the period ended 31 January 2022.

Strategy

Nash Squared Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries, together "Nash Squared", is the leading global provider of technology and talent solutions. We're equipped with a unique network, that realises the potential where people and technology meet.

For over three decades we've been helping clients solve broad and complex problems, building and scaling their technology and digital capability in every way, from connecting organisations with the very best global talent to applying technology expertise to solve complex problems.

Nash Squared was formed on 25 October 2018 when DBAY Advisors, through Nash Squared Holdings Limited (previously Harvey Nash Group Holdings Limited), acquired Nash Squared Limited (previously Harvey Nash Group Limited) and all its subsidiaries. Nash Squared aims to accelerate growth through investments in people, systems, solutions and potentially further acquisitions.

There were no new acquisitions during the year. The directors finalised the onboarding of Latitude 36 and reported results significantly above investment expectations, further increasing the reach of the Nash Squared's North American footprint.

Review of the business

The progress of Nash Squared Holdings Ltd is summarised below:

Results and performance

Nash Squared reported an operating profit of £17.5m after exceptional costs (2021: £4.7m). Operating profit excluding exceptional costs was £18.8m (2021: £10.1m). Profit before tax for the period including all exceptional items was £15.7m (2021: £2.5m). The directors are satisfied with the results.

Key performance indicators (KPIs)

The directors consider the key performance indicators are those that communicate the financial performance and strength of the business.

	1	2022	2021 .
		£, 000	£' 000
Revenue		679,428	566,647
Gross profit		119,550	95,850
Gross margin		17.60%	16.92%
Operating profit (excluding exceptionals)	•	· 18,778	10,050
Operating profit		17,485	4,677
EBITDA (pre-IFRS 16 adjustment) excluding exceptionals *		27,724	18,324
EBITDA percentage of gross profit		23.19%	. 19.12%
Profit before tax		15,741	2,523

^{*} EBITDA excluding exceptionals is calculated by adding back depreciation on property, plant and equipment of £2.1m and amortisation of £6.8m to operating profit before exceptionals of £18.8m.

Governance

Annual Report and Financial Statements Strategic Report

Strategic Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Strategic Report

continued

Stakeholder engagement and our \$172 statement

Introduction

Throughout the strategic and directors report, we provide examples of how we

- •Take into account the likely consequences of long-term decisions
- •Build relationships with stakeholders
- •Engage with employees and promote diversity
- •Understand the importance of finding ways of reducing our environmental impact and be a considerate member of local communities
- Attribute importance to behaving as a responsible business.

The board acknowledges Section 172 (1) of the UK Companies Act 2006, and its duty to promote the success of the Company.

A director of a company must act in the way he or she considers, in good faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so has regard (amongst other matters) to:

- a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term
- b) the interests of the company's employees
- c) the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others
- d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment
- e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct
- f) the need to act fairly between members of the company

The Nash Squared board takes these obligations seriously and the directors are aware of their ongoing duties to act for the benefit of its customers, investors and staff. The following section provides examples of how the company directors meet their duties to all stakeholders.

Employee engagement

During 2020, the board appointed its first Chief People Officer. Since joining they have introduced a Global People Strategy to attract and retain the best talent to enable Nash Squared to build a fit for future organisation that achieves sustainable and profitable growth. This strategy is supported by a connected people team to deliver key strategic actions. Key initiatives include a Global Diversity & Inclusion Council along with three employee networks and a wellbeing hub for colleagues, candidates and clients. Alongside this there has been investment in talent and development with the introduction of a Global Talent Framework, a mentoring programme and the implementation of a new learning management system.

The launch of a Global engagement platform has given our colleagues a voice by fostering a culture of open feedback and actions. The Global engagement survey results are presented at senior leadership and board level to discuss findings, review recommendations and agree action plans. This year also saw the launch of 'Ask Bev', a platform that gives colleagues from across the globe the opportunity to directly raise concerns or ask questions on the wider business strategy with Bev White our CEO. In conjunction with this, global strategy updates for all colleagues are held each quarter. These updates give an opportunity to relay decisions made based on colleague feedback, communicate strategy and its impact on colleagues in addition to sharing updates on wider economic factors affecting Nash Squared.

Equal opportunities

Nash Squared has a zero tolerance approach to discrimination supported by an equal opportunities policy that aims to treat individuals fairly and not to discriminate on the basis of sex, race, ethnic origin, disability or any other basis. Nash Squared is focused on ensuring that we operate in an environment where diversity, equality and inclusion is an integral part of our culture, where our leaders, managers and colleagues role model inclusive behaviours which permeate through our business internally and externally.

Nash Squared's policies and procedures are designed to provide for full and fair consideration and selection of disabled applicants, to ensure that they are properly trained to perform safely and effectively and to provide career opportunities that allow them to fulfill their potential. Where an employee becomes disabled in the course of their employment, Nash Squared will actively seek to retain them wherever possible by making adjustments to their work content and environment or by retraining them to undertake new roles.

Annual Report and Financial Statements Strategic Report

Strategic Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Strategic Report

continued

Business relationships and supply chain

The board is aware of the necessity of maintaining a clean supply chain, free of exploited labour. Nash Squared adheres to a supplier code of conduct that integrate with its key policies, including its Modern Slavery, Human Trafficking (MSHT) and carbon reduction strategy.

The directors encourage all representatives of Nash Squared to build and maintain strong business relationships with both customers and suppliers. This continued engagement with customers and suppliers contributes to the current and continued achievements of Nash Squared.

Community and environment

The board is conscious that the business should have a low impact on the environment in which it operates, particularly in terms of energy consumption and business travel. As an organisation, we take climate change seriously. Our environmental strategy aims to reduce our carbon footprint and follows industry best practice on environmental, social and governance ('ESG') principles. Nosh Squared's operations, being services, are inherently less damaging to the environment than other business sectors. However, the board recognises that the business must minimise its impact on the environment and utilises recommendations from the Carbon Trust to reduce the organisation's carbon footprint.

At Nash Squared we are focused on delivering a positive social impact through our actions to support our employees, the work we do with clients every day and through our actions with local communities. As a global employer we believe in supporting communities within the regions we operate and we do this through initiatives which help to deliver sustainable employment, mentoring, volunteering and fundraising. We actively encourage our colleagues to identify opportunities to support local charities and not-for-profits via volunteering or fundraising.

Emissions and energy usage

This year we have calculated our environmental impact across scope 1, 2 and 3 emission sources for the UK only, presenting emissions on a location basis. Our emissions are 121,400 kgCo2e (2021: 135,540 kgCo2e), which is an intensity ratio of 283 kgCo2e per employee (2021: 411 kgCo2e per employee). We have calculated the emission intensity ratios on a per employee basis. The methodology used to calculate the greenhouse gas emissions uses conversion factors published by the Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs for 2021. We have reported on all the measured emissions sources required under The Companies (Directors' Report) and Limited Liability Partnerships (Energy and Carbon Report) Regulations 2018, except where stated.

The directors are pleased with Nash Squared's progress in reducing carbon emissions, and remain committed to making a positive environmental contribution while recognising their responsibility to ensure a bright future for the next generation.

Emissions and energy usage	Emissions source	2022	2021
Scope 1 (kgCO₂e)	Combustion	40,350	43,910
Scope 2 (kgCO₂e)	Electricity	54,060	66,440.
Scope 3 (kgCO₂e)	Indirect energy	26,990	25,190
Total kgCO₂e	·	121,400	135,540
Total energy usage (kWh)		626,414	633,136
kgCO ₂ e per employee		. 283`	411

Emissions and carbon action

During the year we launched our sustainability report setting out our commitment to achieving environmental sustainability through targeted actions in Nash Squared and the wider value chain. With this in mind, we have set ambitious targets to reach carbon net zero by 2030 across our operational carbon footprint (scope 1 and 2 emissions) and carbon net zero by 2050 across our entire value chain carbon (including scope 3 emissions).

In tandem with the release of our sustainability report and net zero strategy we have implemented measures during the period to help meet our net zero ambitions. The hybrid working that began during the Covid-19 pandemic has been formalised into a global policy allowing colleagues to continue operating hybrid working arrangements, reducing emissions from commuting and the requirements for physical locations.

Ine technological investments that enabled the success of our hybrid working policy have supported the creation of travel policies that reduce non-essential business travel while prioritising low-carbon travel options. Air travel during the period is still below pre-pandemic levels. Nash Squared's objective is to reduce scope 1 emissions from air travel by 50% by 2025.

Nash Squared finalised its property rationalisation project during the period. Where leases have expired we have invested in smaller office spaces that can be shared by our brands and support our hybrid working model. Offices that can benefit from renewable energy sources have been prioritised as part of the rationalisation. We expect to see the full benefit from this in our scope 2 emissions data in the next reporting period. Nash Squared is aiming for all locations to be supplied by renewable energy by 2023.

Our vision is to build limitless futures. We believe our sustainability goals are key to achieving this.

Governance

Annual Report and Financial Statements Directors' Report

Strategic Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Strategic Report

continued

Principal risks and uncertainties

There are certain risks and uncertainties inherent in the Group that may affect future performance, these are described below:

Nash Squared works in a number of geographic jurisdictions on a daily basis under a variety of laws and regulations. Nash Squared mitigates this risk through comprehensive compliance policies and procedures including engaging with local advisers and regulators where necessary.

All potential areas of financial risk are regularly monitored and reviewed by the directors. Where necessary preventative and/or corrective measures are taken to reduce such risk. Nash Squared operates in a number of foreign morkets, the existence of which exposes the company to a number of financial risks. These risks are addressed in note 4 of the financial statements. Risks associated with Covid-19 are separately discussed below.

Nash Squared is reliant on its ability to fulfil client demand while recruiting, training and developing high quality talent to maintain and expand its growth strategy. The directors actively engage in providing a structure of sustainable career development for employees.

Nash Squared continues to diversify its operations and utilises its positioning in key sectors across a broad geographic footprint to protect against lower candidate availability in more mature markets.

The increased political uncertainty from the Ukraine conflict continues to be monitored and reviewed by directors. Nash Squared does not have operations in Ukraine or Russia so there is no direct impact on our trading at this time. In addition to the impact of inflation, tax rises are also being monitored. Client contracts allow any state related pay increases to be charged on.

Despite the impact of Covid-19 on Nash Squared, the current year results have been the strongest in the Nash Squared's history, demonstrating the resilience and adaptability of our business model as we continue to effectively engage with clients, candidates and colleagues in a post pandemic economy.

Nash Squared continues to operate a flexible home working model. The success of the flexible working implementation means that should lockdown measures return, Nash Squared is well placed to quickly adapt without an impact on trade. To manage the impact of the changing working environment Nash Squared continues to focus on colleague wellbeing through increased communication and a number of engagement initiatives such as the launch of our wellbeing hub.

Climate Change

Climate change will impact Nash Squared over a significantly longer time scale than the risks normally considered by the group risk committee. Consequently climate change remains an emerging risk with no material impact on current strategy, liquidity or performance. Despite this, the group risk committee take the impact of climate change seriously and continue to monitor its impact.

Nash Squared adheres to a Group risk policy and framework that was developed based around the principles of ISO31000. Risk registers are submitted from across the organisation on a quarterly basis. The audit and risk committee meets twice a year at which Group risks are presented for consideration. Additionally, the board is made aware of imminent and high risks, and the framework integrates with a business continuity plan that can be activated as

Nash Squared has completed its subsequent events evaluation for the period subsequent to the balance sheet date of 31 January 2022, through to the date of signing these financial statements and concluded that there are no adjusting or non-adjusting subsequent events requiring disclosure.

Future outlook

While greater uncertainty still exists due to the global pandemic, Nash Squared's strategy leaves it well placed to continue making progress, delivering further value to investors and stakeholders through continued focus on the technology market, our broad portfolio of services and the geographic diversity of the

Chris Tilley

Date: 26-May-22

Director

Governance

Annual Report and Financial Statements Directors' Report

Directors' Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Directors' report

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022.

 $On \ 4 \ May \ 2022, the \ company \ changed \ its \ name \ from \ Harvey \ Nash \ Group \ Holdings \ Limited \ to \ Nash \ Squared \ Holdings \ Limited.$

The Group has chosen to prepare their financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Directors

The directors holding office at the date of this report:

•

Adrian Gunn

Joanna Macleod

Bev White Chris Tilley Gary Browning Michael Haxby

Diederik Vos

Michael Branigan

David Morrison

Streisan Bevan

The below changes to the directors occurred during the period and up to the date of this report:

Streisan Bevan

Appointed 1 May 2021

Joanna Macleod

Appointed 1 May, 2021

Sean West

Resigned 29 April 2021

Subsidiaries outside the United Kingdom

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022, the Group had entities established for corporation tax purposes in a number of countries. A full list of subsidiaries and locations are set out on page 52 & 53.

Future developments

Details of future developments can be found in the strategic report and form part of this report by cross-reference.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Nash Squared's activities expose it to a number of financial risks including credit risk, cash flow risk and liquidity risk. Details of Nash Squared's objectives and policies in response to these risks can be found within note 4 to the financial statements.

Going concern

The directors have considered the current and forecast levels of trading, taking into account the cash and invoice discounting facilities expected to be available to Nash Squared, and have concluded that the going concern basis of preparation remains appropriate.

In coming to their conclusion, the directors have considered trading and cash flow performance of the last 12 months and for the coming period. Nash Squared has demonstrated its resilience and ability to trade profitably through the pandemic with considered management actions to reduce costs and maintain strong working capital management. The extremely strong current year trading results support the directors firm belief that Nash Squared is well beyond the point of peak disruption. Despite this the directors have taken a prudent approach, and stress test scenarios have been modelled representing the potential impact of a second pandemic downtum. In this worst case scenario, we would still maintain adequate cash headroom and remain within the limits of our banking arrangements.

Annual Report and Financial Statements Directors' Report

Directors' Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Directors' report

Directors' and third party indemnity provisions

Nash Squared has maintained throughout the period directors' and officers' liability insurance for the benefit of the Group, the directors and its officers. The Group has entered into qualifying third party indemnity arrangements for the benefit of all its directors in a form and scope which complies with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006. These arrangements were in force throughout the period and remain in force at the date of these financial statements.

Dividends

During the period dividends were declared and paid to the value of £1.2m (2021: £0.6m). No dividends have been proposed post period end.

During the period there were no changes to the issued share capital of the Group.

Auditor and disclosure of information to auditor

Each of the persons who is a Director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

- so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information (as defined by section 418 of the Companies Act 2006) of which the Group's auditor is
- the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Group's auditor is aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act 2006.

The auditor, Deloitte LLP, will be proposed for reappointment in accordance with section 485 of the Companies Act 2006.

Approved and signed on behalf of the board:

a. Time

Chris Tilley

Date: 26-May-22

Director

Annual Report and Financial Statements
Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in Respect of the Annual Report

Statement of Directors' Responsibilities in Respect of the Annual Report

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Directors' Responsibilities Statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year.

Under that law the directors are required to prepare the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs') as adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the IAS Regulation and they have also chosen to prepare the parent Company financial statements in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard ('FRS') 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period.

In preparing the parent Company financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
- make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
- state whether FRS 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework has been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and
- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company will continue in business.

In preparing the Group financial statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

- properly select and apply accounting policies;
- present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable and understandable information;
- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are insufficient to enable users to
 understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and conditions on the entity's financial position and financial
 performance; and
- make an assessment of the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

09 Governance

Annual Report and Financial Statements Independent auditor's report

Independent auditor's report to the members of Nash Squared Holdings Limited

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinior

In our opinion:

- the financial statements of Nash Squared Holdings Limited (the 'parent company') and its subsidiaries (the 'group') give a true and fair view of the state of
 the group's and of the parent company's affairs as at 31 January 2022 and of the group's profit for the year then ended;
- the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with International Accounting Standards in conformity with the requirements
 of the Companies Act 2006 and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB)
- the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 "Reduced Disclosure Framework"; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

- the consolidated statement of profit and loss;
- the consolidated statement of other comprehensive income;
- the consolidated and parent company statement of financial position;
- the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
- the consolidated cash flow statement
- the related consolidated notes 1 to 32; and
- the related parent company notes 1 to 6.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (ÚK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's (the 'FRC's') Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group's and parent company's ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report.

Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Annual Report and Financial Statements Independent auditor's report

Independent auditor's report to the members of Nash Squared Holdings Limited

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Report on the audit of the financial statements

continued

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors' responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group's and the parent company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the group's industry and its control environment, and reviewed the group's documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and regulations. We also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that the group operates in, and identified the key laws and regulations that:

- had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. These included; the UK Companies Act, relevant tax legislation; and
- do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental to the group's ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty.

We discussed among the audit engagement team including significant component audit teams and relevant internal specialists such as tax, valuations, and IT regarding the opportunities and incentives that may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud in the following areas, and our specific procedures performed to address them are described below:

the risk that any impairment review in relation to goodwill balances has not been carried out appropriately: to address this risk, independent valuations experts have analysed inputs to the goodwill model and discount rates, management assumptions and forecasts have been critically evaluated and challenged to assess reasonableness, mathematical accuracy of management's model has been tested, and sensitivity analysis has been performed including recalculation of headrooms

the risk that revenue amounts have been recorded inaccurately or recognised in the wrong period (resulting in a misstatement to the accrued revenue balance): In order to address this risk, we obtained the reconciliation between revenue accrued for at year end, and timesheets submitted after year end, relating to the current reporting period. Timesheets submitted after year end have been vouched on a sample basis.

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to respond to the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

Annual Report and Financial Statements Independent auditor's report

Independent auditor's report to the members of Nash **Squared Holdings Limited**

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Report on the audit of the financial statements

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

- reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the financial statements;
- performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud:
- enquiring of management and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential litigation and claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws
- reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the strategic report and the directors' report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
- the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors' report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
- the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
 - certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company's members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Peter Saunders (Senior statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

London, United Kingdom

Date: 26-May-22

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

					2022	2021
		v.	,	Notes	£' 000	£, 000
Revenue	,				679,428	566,647
Cost of sales					(559,878)	(470,797)
Gross profit		,		. 6	119,550	95,850
Other income				• 11	159	1,551
Administrative expenses					(100,931)	(87,351)
Operating profit before exceptional items				·	18,778	10,050
Exceptional items			•	10	(1,293)	(5,372)
Operating profit				. 8	17,485	4,678
Finance costs				· 7	(1,714)	(1,936)
Exceptional finance costs				. 10	(30)	. (219)
Profit before tax	•				15,741	2,523
Income tax (charge) / credit				13	(2,641)	1,785
Profit for the period		•	•		13,100	4,308

Consolidated Statement of Other Comprehensive Income

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

						2022	`As restated* 2021
						€, 000	€, 000
Profit for the period	•			•	•	13,100	4,308
Foreign currency translation	n differences	5				1,084	(1,272)
Other comprehensive income for the period				1,084	(1,272)		
Total comprehensive profit for the period attributable to owners of the Company				14,184	3,036		

^{*} Note 32

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Company Number: 11464274

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 January 2022	•				Notes	, 2022 €' 000	As Restated® 2021 £° 000
ASSETS					•		
Non-current assets			• • •		•		
ntangible assets	. •				15	122,801	130,126
Property, plant and equipment	\ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \ \			•	16	6,185	5,818
Right-of-use assets	·				17	9,900	9,615
oans receivable from group underta	ıkings'				25	995	845
oan receivable	_	•			29	1,924	1,934
,					4	141,805	148,338
Current assets				•			•
rade and other receivables	•		•	*	18	. 164,046	154,890
Current income tax assets	•				. 13	750	-
Cash and cash equivalents				•	. 19	30,221	21,684
			, ,			195,017	176,574
otal assets						336,822	324,912
IABILITIES							
Current liabilities							
rade and other payables	•		•		20	(157,096)	(149,865)
Current income tax liabilities				•	13	•	(1,322)
Deferred tax liabilities		٠.			13	(1,066)	(1.544)
orrowings	•				30	(40,1 <i>77</i>)	(37,108)
hort-term lease liabilities	• .	•			. 17	(7,807)	(6,164)
Deferred consideration					31	(6,758)	(7,190)
						(212,904)	(203,193)
lon-current liabilities					1	`	
Sorrowings					. 30	(15,135)	(18,443)
ong-term leasė liabilities	-				17	(2,472)	(3,743)
oans payable to group undertakings	s . ·				25	(1,112)	(912)
Peferred consideration				,	31	-	(6.644)
Deferred tax liabilities				•	. 13	(7,584)	(7,311)
•					•	(26,303)	(37,053)
otal liabilities	,			•	•	(239,207)	(240,246)
let assets				-		97,615	84,666
QUITY				•		•	
Ordinary shares	•				22	1	
hare premium	•				22		10,000
air.value and other non-distributable	e reserves				. 23	15,380	15,380
Other distributable reserves	•	,			23	67,969	67,969
Cumulative translation reserve					23	(2,222)	(3,306)
Retained earnings	,				. 24	6,487	(5,378)
otal equity					. 24	97,615	84,666

The consolidated financial statements on pages 12 - 47 were approved by the board and authorised for issue on its behalf by Chris Tilley.

Director



Date: 26-May-22

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

	Share capital	Share premlum	Fair value and other non- distributable reserves	Other distributable reserves	Cumulative translation reserve	Retained earnings	Total
	€' 000	£' 000	£, 000	£' 000	£' 000	£, 000	£, 000
Balance at 1 February 2020	. 1	•	15,380	67,969	(2,034)	(9,124)	72,192
Profit for the period			-	-	-	4,309	4,309
Currency translation adjustments	•	-	-		(922)	•	(922)
Restatement (Note 32)	-	-	·	-	(350)		(350)
Total comprehensive income for the period	•	• -	-	-	(1,272)	4,309	3,036
Shares issued during the period		10,000	•	• -	-		10,000
Dividends paid	-	-	· .	-	-	(562)	(562)
Balance at 31 January 2021	1	10,000	15,380	67,969	(3,306)	(5,378)	84,666
Profit for the period		-	-	• -		13,100	13,100
Currency translation adjustments	. <u>-</u>	-	-		1,084	- ,	1,084
Total comprehensive income for the period	-	-	-	-	1,084	13,100	14,184
Dividends paid			-	•	•	(1,235)	(1,235)
Balance at 31 January 2022	1	10,000	15,380	67,969	(2,222)	6,487	97,615

Nash Squared Holdings Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

	Notes	2022 £'000	2021 £ 000
Profit before tax		15,741	2,523
djustments for:		•	, _,
depreciation	16	6,948	7,154
amortisation	15	6,824	6,079
profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment	16	(161)	· -
finance income	11	(129)	· (76)
	7	1,714	1,936
finance costs	. 10	30	219
exceptional finance costs	, 10	200	
LTIP non-cash movement	•	31,167	17,835
perating cash flows before changes in working capital	•	31,167	17,033
Changes in working capital:	!	(0.014)	20.944
(increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables	18	(9,016)	29,866
increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables	· 20	7,230	(3,152
decrease in provisions	21		(304)
ash flows from operating activities		29,381	44,245
ncome tax paid	13	(4,026)	(2,437
et cash generated from operating activities	<u></u>	25,355	41,80
ash flows from investing activities			
urchases of property, plant and equipment	1,6	(2.660)	(2,361
terest received	. 11	129	7
ayment of deferred consideration	30	(6,736)	(194
cquisition of subsidiary		. -	(16,105
ash acquired in acquisition of subsidiary	. •	· -	1,18
et cash used in investing activities		(9,267)	(17,398
ash flows from financing activities		•	
ease capital repayments	. 17	(5,001)	(5,147
	25	(150)	(0,7, 7)
pans given to group undertakings		. (100)	568
oceeds from group undertakings	25	(1,435)	(1,539
terest paid	7	(30)	(219
cceptional finance costs	10	(55)	10,000
roceeds from share issue	22	_	5,769
oceeds from long-term borrowings	: 29	. 13 3001	
epayment of long-term borrowings	29	(3.309) 3,068	(1,917
crease/(decrease) in short-term borrowings	29	•	` (27,445
quity dividends paid	. 14	(1,235)	(10.000
et cash used in financing activities		(8,092)	(19,930
crease in cash and cash equivalents		7,996	4,48
ash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year		21,684	17,65
xchange movements on cash and cash equivalents		. 541	(451
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year	•	30,221	21,684

Nash Squared Holdings Limited

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

1. General information

Nash Squared Holdings Ltd ('the Company') and its subsidiaries (together 'the Group') is a leading provider of specialist recruitment and outsourcing solutions. The Group has offices in the United Kingdom, Europe, the United States and Asia Pacific.

The Company is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United Kingdom and registered in England and Wales. Its registered address is 3 Noble Street, London EC2V 7EE.

For the period ended 31 January 2022 the following subsidiaries of the Company were entitled to exemption from audit under \$479A of the Companies Act 2006 relating to subsidiary companies. As parent the Group has provided a guarantee undertaking under \$479C.

NashTech Limited (Company Number 09834873)
Nash Squared Ltd (Company Number 03320790)

1.2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs").
The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with IFRSs adopted by the European Union and therefore the Group financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EU IAS Regulation.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at revalued amounts or fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

The financial statements of the parent Company are prepared under Financial Reporting Standard ('FRS') 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework.

The Company has adopted the requirements of The Companies, Partnerships, and Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2015.

2. Adoption of new and revised standards

The Group has considered the following new standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards that are effective for the Group for the financial period beginning 1 February 2021 and concluded that they are either not relevant to the Group or that they would not have a significant effect on the Group's financial statements other than disclosures:

Standard	Description	Effective Date
IFRS 4, IFRS 7, IFRS 9, IFRS 16, IAS 39	Amendments regarding replacement issues in the context of the IBOR reform	1 January 2021
IFRS 17	Insurance contracts	1 January 2021
IFRS 16	Amendment to extend the exemption from assessing whether a COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease modification	1 April 2021

Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

2. Adoption of new and revised standards

financial statements:

IAS 12

continued

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards and interpretations which are relevant to the Group have been issued but are not effective for the financial period beginning 1 February 2021 and have not been adopted early.

These standards, interpretations and amendments to published standards and interpretations are not expected to have a material effect on the Group's

Description Standard **Effective Date** Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018–2020 (subsidiary as IFRS 1 1 January 2022 IFRS 3 Amendments updating a reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022 IFRS 4 Amendments regarding the expiry date of the deferral approach 1 January 2023 1 January 2023 IAS J Amendments regarding the classification of liabilities IAS 8 Amendments regarding the definition of accounting estimates 1 January 2023

1 January 2023

Amendments regarding deferred tax on leases and decommissioning obligations

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

(a) Going concern

The directors have, at the time of approving the financial statements, a reasonable expectation that the Company and the Group have adequate resources to continue in operational existence for at least 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements. The Group have performed assessments of the ongoing impact of Covid-19 on going concern and the details of these assessments are discussed in the directors report on page 6. Accordingly the Group continues to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.

(b) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolidate the results of the Company and all of its subsidiary undertakings drawn up from 1 February 2021 to 31 January 2022 and are based on the consistent accounting policies disclosed herein.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary. All intra-Group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between the members of the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with the Group's accounting policies.

(c) Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interest issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:

- deferred tax assets or liabilities and assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 and IAS 19 respectively;
- liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based payment arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree are measured in accordance with IFRS 2 at the acquisition date; and
- assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 are measured in accordance with that Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business combination includes a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes in fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with corresponding adjustments against goodwill. Measurement period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional information obtained during the 'measurement period' (which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. Other contingent consideration is remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's previously held interests (including joint operations) in the acquired entity are remeasured to its acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss, where such treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of that date.

Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies

continued

(d) Goodwill

Goodwill is initially recognised and measured as set out above.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If an impairment is required the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rate on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

(e) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for the supply of services, net of value added tax, rebates and discounts and after eliminating sales within the Group.

Revenue arising from permanent placements is recognised on acceptance of the candidate or on start date, subject to the contractual agreement. Provision is made for the expected cost of obligations where employees do not work for the specified contractual period.

Executive recruitment and assignment fees are recognised as services are provided, typically in two stages; shortlist and placement fee under new revenue recognition accounting standard IFRS 15. Provision is made for the expected cost of obligations where employees do not work for the specified contractual period.

The Group derives its revenue in the contract services and interim businesses on a time and materials basis. It is recognised as services are rendered as validated by receipt of a client-approved timesheet or equivalent. Where the Group is acting as a principal, turnover represents amounts billed for the services, inclusive of the remuneration costs of the workers.

For fixed price development work, revenue is recognised on the percentage completion basis, using pre-specified milestones or a client sign-off to trigger revenue recognition and the estimate of profit. Revenue from business process outsourcing is recognised as services are rendered, based on a time and materials basis.

Revenue anticipated, but not invoiced, at the balance sheet date is accrued on the balance sheet as accrued income. Revenue invoiced but not earned at the balance sheet date is recorded as a liability as deferred income.

(e)(i) IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

The Group adopted IFRS 15 from 1 November 2018. IFRS 15 introduced a five-step approach in measuring and recognising revenue from contracts and replaced IAS 18 'Revenue' and related interpretations. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of the goods or services.

The Group continuously monitors and performs a detailed review of contracts, to determine the timing of the transfer of control in each of its service lines.

Principal versus agent considerations

The Group derives a significant proportion of its revenue from the provision of temporary workers to clients. Whether the full invoiced amount is recognised gross (inclusive of the costs of the temporary workers), or net (exclusive of costs of the workers) depends on whether the Group acts as principal or agent. IFRS 15 moves away from the 'risks and rewards' concept of revenue recognition used by IAS 18 'Revenue' to a concept of 'transfer of control'. Its core principal is whether the good or service is controlled by the entity prior to delivery to the client. For the purposes of determining whether an entity acts as an agent or principal, IFRS 15 provides indicators of where control may exist. Significantly, these indicators do not include credit risk as an indicator that an entity is acting as a principal.

Temporary contractors

Where the Group has the primary responsibility to deliver and fulfil the promise to provide contractors to the client, this indicates that the entity controls the service before it is transferred to the client. This includes the acceptability of the service meeting the client's specifications. The Group is acting as principal. Revenue recognised is the gross amount billed to the client for the services of the temporary workers. This includes revenues from the placement of temporary contractors where the Group has a contract management services contract with the client. Revenue recognition therefore remains consistent with the current policy under IAS 18.

Contract management services – temporary contractors arranged by third party agencies

The Group acts as an agent when its primary responsibility is to provide administrative support to clients, acting as an intermediary between two parties. The Group does not control the service provided to the client as the primary responsibility to deliver the services to the client sits with a third party agency. Revenue is recognised as the commission only (exclusive of costs of the worker).

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies

continued

(e)(i) IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers'

continued

Revenue earned on a retained basis

Revenue for permanent executive recruitment and assignment fees is based on a percentage of a candidate's remuneration package, recognised over time as the services are provided. Under IFRS 15 recruitment and assignment fees are considered as one performance obligation, delivered over time. When revenue is recognised over time, it is necessary to determine the entity's performance towards satisfaction of the performance obligation. Revenue can therefore not be recognised until the entity has performed a service that will take it closer to fulfilling the performance obligation.

Commissions

Under IAS 18, incremental costs incurred in obtaining a contract (such as sales commissions) are expensed as incurred. However, under IFRS 15, these costs are recognised as an asset and amortised over the life of the contract if they are expected to be recovered from the client. Given the short-term nature of the Group's contracts, the Group elected to take the practical expedient offered under IFRS 15 for contracts less than 12 months, allowing commissions to be expensed as incurred.

(f) Investments

Investments in associated undertakings ('associated companies') are stated at the amount of the Group's share of net assets.

(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the following bases:

Leasehold improvements

term of the lease

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

5 Years

Office equipment

5 Years

Computer equipment

3 - 10 Years

Motor vehicles

25% reducing balance

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis. The gain or loss on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant or equipment is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement.

Property, plant and equipment purchased to deliver outsourcing projects, which have been recharged to clients at cost, remain the legal property of the Group. The cost of the asset is capitalised within current assets and charged to cost of sales over the contract length.

Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies

continued

(h) Leases

This note sets out the Group's IFRS 16 accounting policy,

IFRS 16

The Group applies IFRS 16 Leases (as issued by the IASB in January 2016).

IFRS 16 introduced new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduced significant changes to the lessee accounting by removing the distinction between operating and finance lease requirements and requires the recognition of a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets. In contrast to lessee accounting, the requirements for lessor accounting have remained largely unchanged. The impact of the adoption of IFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated financial statements is described below.

The Group elected to adopt IFRS 16 'Leases', applied from 1 November 2018, using the modified retrospective approach, under which the right-of use asset is measured at the same amount as lease liability on the date of initial application (1 November 2018), adjusted only for any prepaid or accrued lease payments recognised in balance sheet on that date under IAS 17 'Leases'.

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, comprising the initial measurement of the lease liability, plus any initial direct costs and an estimate of asset retirement obligations, less any lease incentives. Subsequently, right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses, and are adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the length of the lease.

Impact of the new definition of a lease

The Group has made use of the practical expedient available on transition to IFRS 16 not to reassess whether a contract is or contains a lease. Accordingly, the definition of a lease in accordance with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 will continue to be applied to those leases entered by subsidiaries before 1 November 2018.

The change in definition of a lease mainly relates to the concept of control. IFRS 16 determines whether a contract contains a lease on the basis of whether the customer has the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group applies the definition of a lease and related guidance set out in IFRS 16 to all lease contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 November 2018 (whether it is a lessor or a lessee in the lease contract).

Impact on lease accounting

Operating leases

IFRS 16 changes how the Group accounts for leases previously classified as operating leases under IAS 17.

Applying IFRS 16, for all leases (except as noted below), the Group:

- a) Recognises right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial position, initially measured at the present value of future lease payments;
- b) Recognises depreciation of right-of-use assets and interest on lease liabilities in the consolidated income statement; and
- c) Separates the total amount of cash paid into a principal portion (presented within financing activities) and interest (presented within operating activities) in the consolidated income statement.

Lease incentives (e.g., free rent period) are recognised as part of the measurement of the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities whereas under IAS 17 they resulted in the recognition of a lease incentive liability, amortised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis.

Under IFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. This replaces the previous requirement to recognise a provision for onerous lease contracts.

For short-term leases (lease term of less than 12 months) and leases of low-value assets (such as personal computers and office furniture), the Group has opted to recognise a lease expense on a straight-line basis as permitted by IFRS 16. This expense is presented within other expenses in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other comprehensive income.

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies

continued

IFRS 16 'Leases'

continued

Impact on Lessee Accounting

Finance leases

The main difference between IFRS 16 and IAS 17 with respect to assets formerly held under a finance lease is the measurement of residual value guarantees provided by a lessee to a lessor. IFRS 16 requires that the Group recognises as part of its lease liability only the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, rather than the maximum amount guaranteed as required by IAS 17. This change did not have a material effect on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

(i) Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each Group company are presented in the currency of the primary economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated financial statements, the results and financial position of each Group company are expressed in sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company, and the presentation currency for the consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate component of equity.

On the disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange differences accumulated in a separate component of equity in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(j) Intangible assets

Intangible assets which are acquired separately, or through a business combination, are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. The Group does not have any assets, other than goodwill, with infinite useful lives. Any impairment is recognised immediately in the income statement.

Development costs are capitalised as an intangible asset if all of the requirements of IAS 38 'Intangible Assets' are met. The amount initially recognised for internally generated intangible assets is the sum of the expenditure incurred from the date when the intangible asset first meets the recognistion criteria listed above. Where no internally generated intangible asset can be recognised, development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. Subsequent to initial recognition, internally generated intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

As part of the acquisition during the period, the following separately identifiable assets were identified:

Customer relationships

8 - 14 Years

Brands

1 - 10 Years

Internally developed software

6 Years

Financial Statements
 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
 continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies

continued

(k) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fairvalue less costs of sale and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Where an impairment subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the original carrying value prior to any impairment charges.

(i) Financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets are derecognised when the Group's contractual rights to the cash flows expire or the Group transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of the financial asset. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the Group's balance sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires

Financial assets

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market are classified as 'loans and receivables'. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial. For trade receivables, generally this results in recognition at nominal value less any allowance for doubtful debts.

Financial assets which are not classified as loans and receivables, but do not meet the held to collect business model and contractual cash flow criteria as set out in IFRS 9 are classified as 'fair value through other comprehensive income' ('FVOCI'). A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial asset. Financial assets in this category are classified as current assets. All other financial assets that cannot be classified under amortized cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value through profit and loss ('FVTPL').

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either FVTPL or 'other financial liabilities'. A financial liability is classified as FVTPL if it is held for trading or specifically designated as such to eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency that would otherwise arise. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in the profit and loss.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies

continued

(I)(i) IFRS 9

The Group applies IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as revised in July 2014) and the related consequential amendments to other IFRS Standards in these financial statements. IFRS 9 provides for the following:

- a) The classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities;
- b) Impairment of financial assets; and
- c) General hedge accounting.

Details of these new requirements as well as their impact on the Group's consolidated financial statements are described below.

The Group has applied IFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set out in IFRS 9.

Classification and measurement of financial assets

The date of initial application (i.e. the date on which the Group has assessed its existing financial assets and financial liabilities in terms of the requirements of IFRS 9) is 1 November 2018. Accordingly, the Group has applied the requirements of IFRS 9 to instruments recognised as at 1 November 2018.

All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 are required to be measured subsequently at amortised cost or fair value on the basis of the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets.

Debt instruments that are held to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at amortised cost;

Debt instruments that are held to collect the contractual cash flows and to sell the debt instruments, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, are measured subsequently at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI).

All other debt investments and equity investments are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Despite the aforegoing, the Group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial recognition of a financial asset:

- a) The Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of on equity investment that is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination in other comprehensive income; and
- b) The Group may irrevacably designate a debt investment that meets the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

In the current period, the Group has not designated any debt investments that meet the amortised cost or FVTOCI criteria as measured at FVTPL.

When a debt investment measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment. When an equity investment designated as measured at FVTOCI is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is subsequently transferred to retained earnings.

Debt instruments that are measured subsequently at amortised cost or at FVTOCI are subject to impairment.

The directors of the Group reviewed and assessed the Group's existing financial assets as at 1 November 2018 based on the facts and circumstances that existed at that date and concluded that the initial application of IFRS 9 has had the following impact on the Group's financial assets as regards their classification and measurement:

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity and loans and receivables under IAS 39 that were measured at amortised cost continue to be measured at amortised cost under IFRS 9 as they are held within a business model to collect contractual cash flows and these cash flows consist solely of payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

None of the other reclassifications of financial assets have had any impact on the Group's financial position, profit or loss, other comprehensive income or total comprehensive income in the period.

Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies co

continued

Impairment of financial assets

IFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model, rather than an incurred credit loss model to be applied. This requires the assessment of the expected credit loss on each class of financial asset at each reporting date. This assessment should take into consideration any changes in credit risk since the initial recognition of the financial asset. The main class of financial asset held by the Group are trade receivables, which are short-term in nature.

The directors of the Group have reviewed and assessed existing financial assets using reasonable and supportable information to determine credit risk and concluded that there is no material financial impact on the Group.

(m) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Where any Group company purchases the Company's equity share capital (own shares), the consideration paid is deductible from equity attributable to the Company's equity holders until the shares are concelled, reissued or disposed of. Where such shares are subsequently sold or reissued, any consideration received is included in equity attributable to the Company's equity holders.

(n) Tax

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income and expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred táx

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

(o) Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company's shareholders. Interim dividends are recognised when paid.

Financial Statements 26 ◀

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies

continued

(p) Employee benefits

Pension obligations

Wherever possible, the Group operates defined contribution pension schemes, under which the Group pays fixed contributions into separate entities. The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions. Pension costs are charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which they arise. In Belgium and Switzerland, legislation requires the operation of pension schemes which contain an element of defined benefit, the obligations under which are fully insured and there are no unrecorded liabilities. Amounts related to these schemes were considered by the Group to be immaterial during the period thus Group accounted for these as defined contribution schemes.

Share-based payment transactions

Where share options are awarded to employees, the fair value of the options at the date of grant is charged to profit or loss over the vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of equity instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of options that eventually vest.

Market vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the options granted. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for the failure to achieve a market vesting condition.

The fair value of the award also takes into account non-vesting conditions. These are either factors beyond the control of either party (such as a target based on an index) or factors which are within the control of one or other of the parties (such as the company keeping the scheme open or the employee maintaing any contributions required by the scheme).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal.

Bonus plan

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses when contractually obliged.

Government grants

Government grants are accounted for under the accruals model. A grant that becomes receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the entity with no future related costs is recognised in other income in the period it becomes receivable. This includes the Government Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme. The Group has not benefited from other forms of government assistance or received grants relating to expenditure on non-current assets.

(q) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Discounting is applied only when the effect is material.

(r) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are written off as incurred. Invoice discounting fees are recognised as incurred.

(s) Working capital facilities

The Group has access to working capital finance facilities provided by its bankers in the form of a confidential trade receivables finance facility which is secured by a floating charge over the Group's assets. The borrowings under this are included within current liabilities and described as borrowings on the Group's consolidated statement of financial position and the facility is secured specifically against the Group's trade receivables. Trade receivables are included within trade receivables in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position.

Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

3. Significant accounting policies

(t) Exceptional items

Exceptional items are significant items considered outside the normal course of business and are presented separately on the face of the consolidated statement of profit and loss due to their nature and/or size with further information included in the notes to the financial statements. The separate reporting of such items helps to provide a better indication of the Group's underlying business performance as it enables shareholders to see the results of the ongoing trading operations.

In the reporting of financial information, the Group uses certain measures that are not required under IFRS. Management considers that these additional measures (commonly referred to as 'alternative performance measures' or 'APMs') provide shareholders with valuable additional information on the performance of the business. These measures are consistent with those used internally, and are considered critical to understanding the financial performance of the Group. APMs are also used to enhance the comparability of information between reporting periods, by adjusting for exceptional or items considered to be distortive to trading performance which may affect IFRS measures, to aid shareholders in understanding the Group's performance. These APMs are not intended to be a substitute for, or superior to, IFRS measures. The only APM presented by the group is for exceptional items (Note 10).

Nash Squared Holdings Limited

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

4. Financial risk management

Financing

The Group's principal financial instruments are overdrafts, cash and short-term deposits, an invoice discounting facility and a senior finance debt syndicated facility. The Group has other financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables that arise directly from its operations. Acquisitions are financed through a mixture of operating cash flow and equity. Working capital finance for day-to-day requirements is provided through operating cash generation, invoice discount facilities and small short term overdraft facilities. Where applicable, funds are then made available for the financing of the Group's subsidiaries through intercompany loans.

Objectives, policies and strategies

The most significant treasury exposures faced by the Group are raising finance, managing interest rates and currency positions as well as investing surplus cash in high-quality assets. The Board has established clear parameters, including levels of authority, on the type and use of financial instruments to manage these exposures. Transactions are only undertaken if they relate to underlying exposures and cannot be viewed as speculative.

Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital for the Group. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

	•			2022	2021
	•		•	£, 000	£, 000
Borrowings		·		. 55,312	55,550
Total equity				97,615	84,666
Total funding				152,927	140,216
Gearing ratio %				36.2%	39.6%

Interest rate risk management

The Group's policy is to minimise interest charges through cash pooling and active cash management.

Market risk and foreign exchange risk management

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates. The Group's policy is to minimise foreign currency risk. The Group manages its exposure on equity investments in overseas subsidiaries through foreign currency borrowings. The currency risk of holding assets and liabilities in foreign currencies across the Group is managed by partially matching foreign currency assets with foreign currency liabilities.

The Group's operating profit exposure to foreign currency translation is primarily in respect of the US dollar and the Euro.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk. It has policies in place to ensure that sales of services are made to austamon with an appropriate credit history and historically there are low levels of debt write-off throughout the Group. Trade receivables consist of a large number of customers, spread across diverse industries and geographical areas. The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to a single customer.

29 Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

4. Financial risk management

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and committed credit facilities. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group's liquidity reserve (comprising undrawn borrowing facility, cash and invoice discounting) on the basis of expected cash flow. All borrowings are short term other than the syndicated senior finance facility. The Group's main invoice finance facility was most recently renewed in November 2018.

5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies the directors are required to make judgements (other than those involving estimations) that have a significant impact on the amounts recognised and to make estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

Critical Judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements that the directors have made in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in financial statements.

Share based payments

The Group has exercised judgement in determining that the share option scheme which is based on the future sale price of the Group by the current shareholders reflects performance-based remuneration which should pass through the income statement. Management has estimated the value of the share option scheme at the date of initial grant and will vest the amount through share option charge on the income statement up to the expected exercise date. The exercise date used is also a management estimate.

As part of the acquisition purchase price allocation management was required to make various judgements and estimations in relation to the values placed on intangible assets and goodwill allocated to each cash-generating unit. Management utilised various market analysis, and valuation techniques as well as forward-looking forecasts as at the time of acquisition which are inherently judgemental.

The presentation of selected items as exceptional items

The Group applies judgement in identifying the significant non-recurring items of income and expense that are recognised as exceptional to help provide an indication of the Group's underlying business performance. See note 10 for further details.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting period, that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill and investments

Determining whether the carrying value of goodwill or an investment is impaired requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-generating units to which goodwill or investment has been allocated. The value-in-use calculation requires management to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value. These include forward-looking forecasts which are inherently judgemental. The corrying amount of goodwill at 31 January 2022 was £69.5m. The carrying value of the investment held in the parent company at 31 January 2022 was £108.6m. The key assumptions and sensitivities in the value-in-use calculations are set out in note 15.

6. Segment information

IFRS 8 'Operating Segments' requires disclosure of information about the Group's operating segments. It requires a management approach under which segment information is presented on a similar basis to that used for internal reporting purposes. The chief operating decision maker in the business has been identified as the Group Board. Services provided by each reportable segment are Leadership Services, Technology Recruitment and Solutions.

The accounting policies of the reportable segments are the same as the Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

•	follows:			•	•
Revenue	•			2022	20 21
Geographical	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u> </u>	•	£' 000	£' 000
United Kingdom & Ireland				308,770	274,181
Mainland Europe				215,422	198,128
Benelux				157,610	145,509
Nordics				20,350	15,652
Central Europe				37,462	36,967
United States				115,312	52,943
Asia Pacific	• .			39,924	41,395
Total revenue	•			679,428	566,647
Service line	·.	٠.			
Technology récruitment		•		596,535	467,269
Technology Solutions	•			55,097	78,460
Leadership services				27,796	20,918
Total revenue		•		679,428	566,647
Operating profit and profit before tax	1.	,		•	
•		. •			
Geographical				12,289	3,866
United Kingdom & Ireland		. •	•	7,417	8,539
Mainland Europe		•		6,984	8,515
Benelux				135	(517)
Nordics				298	541
Central Europe	,			6,384	527
United States	•			1,948	3,669
Asia Pacific			. •		
Total ·			•	28,038	16,601
Service Line					
Technology recruitment		•		20,208	11,853
Technology Solutions				6,906	5,257
Leadership services				924	(509)
Total .				28,038	16,601
Group and central service costs			•	(9,260)	(6,551)
lotal operating profit before exceptional items				18,778	10,050
Exceptional items	·			(1,293)	(5,372)
Total operating profit	•	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		17,485	4,678
Finance costs		• .		(1,714)	(1,936)
Exceptional finance costs				(30)	(219)
Exceptional injurios costs				15,741	2,523

Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

7. Finance costs

		2022	2021
		£. 000	£' 000
Net interest on bank borrowings		1,435	1,540
Interest expense on lease liabilities	·	279	396
Finance costs	,	1,714	1,936

8. Operating profit

The following items have been included in arriving at operating profit from continuing operations:

,		2022	2021
		£' 000	€, 000
Bad debt provision and debts directly written off		140	1,030
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment		. 2,124	2,196
*Depreciation on right of use assets	•.	4,824	4,959
Amortisation of intangible assets	•	6,824	6,079
Operating lease rentals payable		1,322	,255
Loss/(profit) on foreign exchange.		 45	(26) · ,

9. Auditor's remuneration

The analysis of the auditor's remuneration is as follows:

	2022	2021
	£' 000	€. 000
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's Annual Report	207	185
Fees payable to the Company's auditor for the audit of the Company's subsidiaries pursuant to legislation	409	375
Total audit fees	616 .	. 560
Total fees	616	560

No services were performed pursuant to contingent fee arrangements. There were no other non-guidit fees incurred in the current period.

Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

10. Exceptional items

Exceptional items

•		·		٠.	2022	2021
				£' 000	£, 000	
Acquisition costs			•		-	2,341
Covid-19 related costs					-	561
Group transformation				•	266	1,601
Property exit costs		•	1		932	• '
Optimisation projects.			•	•	47	814
Other				•	48	55
Total exceptional items				· •	1,293	5,372

The Group engaged in a number of transformation projects during the year, including the restructuring of relevant divisions and investments in key areas. Costs incurred for the period were £0.3m.

During the year the Group moved to a new London head office. As a result of the move, dilapidations, legal and consultancy fees totalling £0.9m were incurred.

Exceptional finance costs

						2022	2021
		•	_	-	•	€, 000	£' 000
Exceptional finance costs	•		-			30	219

During the year £0.03m was incurred transitioning all LIBOR loans to the new risk free rate, SONIA.

11. Other income

		•		2022	2021
,			<i>;</i>	€, 000	€ 000
Interest received				129	. 76
Job retention furlough scheme			• .	30	913
Other income	·	•			562
Total other income		•	•	159	1,551

As a result of Covid-19 during the period the Group took advantage of government job retention schemes whereby a portion of salaries were relimbursed for furloughed staff. The total benefit for the period was £0.03m (2021: £0.9m).

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Accounts 2022

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

12. Employees and directors

Average number of people employed	,	UK & Ireland	Europe	Rest of World	Total
Executive directors		6	-		. 6
Sales		235	254	67 ·	556 ·
Administrative		106	91	121	, 318
Employees included within cost of sales	•	100	431	1,581	2,112
Total for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022		447	776	1,769	2,992

Average number of people employed	UK & Ireland	Europe	Rest of World	Total
Executive directors	2	-		2
Sales ,	`244	227	60	531
Administrative	124	81	121 .	326
Employees included within cost of sales .		374	1,545	1,919
Total for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2021	370	682	. 1,726	2,778

No directors or employees were employed by the company during the period.

	2022	2022	2022	2021	2021	2021
	Cost of sales	Admin expenses	Total	. Cost of sales	Admin expenses	Total
Total staff costs for the Group	£' 000	£, 000	€' 000	€, 000	£' 000	£, 000
Wages and salaries	48,620	45,184	93,804	50,741	50,454	101,195
Social security costs	6,405	8,070	14,475	7,232	6,325	13,558
Pension costs	910	2,382	3,292	1,920	1,253	3,173
Total	55,935	55,636	111,571	59,893	58,033	117,926

Directors' emoluments in respect of qualifying services to the Group were as follows:

		•	2022	2021
Directors' remuneration	·		£, 000	£' 000
Aggregate emoluments ,			1,373	582
Pension contributions			69	65
Share-based payments	,		90	. 70
Total director's remuneration			1,532	717
Highest paid director				
Aggregate emoluments	•.		652	300
Pension contributions		•	. 41	39
Share-based payments			50	50
Total highest paid director .			743	389

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, directors' emoluments above represent the proportion of total emoluments paid or payable in respect of qualifying services.

During the period the directors received no emoluments for non-qualifying services which are required to be disclosed.

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

IS. IQX	1	3.	Tax
---------	---	----	-----

	2022	2021
	€. 000	€, 000
Corporation tax - UK	317	4
Corporation tax - overseas	3,145	2,693
Adjustments in respect of prior periods	. (654)	463
Total current tax expense	2,808	·3,160
Decrease in deferred tax liability	(167)	(4,945)
Total deferred tax credit	(167)	(4,945)
Total tax charge / (credit)	. 2,641	(1,785)

The tax rate used for the reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 19.00% (2021: 19.00%) which was in effect the entire period.

The difference are explained below for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022 using the UK standard rate of corporation tax:

	2022	2021
Des Ed. / Illust had some how	£' 000	£, 000
Profit / (loss) before tax	15,741	2,523
Tax at standard UK corporation tax rate of 19.00%	2,991	479
Effects of:		
Expenses not deductible and other permanent items	941	568
Income not taxable	<u>-</u>	(725)
Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses	- -	(1)
Adjustments to current tax in respect of prior year adjustments	(654)	463
Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax balances	717	244
Deferred tax adjustment in respect of prior years	434	(333)
Profits taxed at overseas rates	(211)	(133)
Recognition of previously unrecognised deferred tax asset	(1,577)	(2,347)
Total taxation	2,641	(1,785)
Current tax:	•	
Tax in the period	3,462	2,697
Adjustments in respect of prior periods	(654)	463
Total current tax	2,808	3,160
Deferred tax:		,
Origination and reversal of timing differences	(1,318)	(4,856)
Effect of changes in tax rates on deferred tax balances	717	244
Prior period adjustment to deferred tax	434	(333)
Total deferred tax credit	(167)	(4,945)
Total tax charge / (credit)	2,641	(1,785)

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

13. Tax continued

The Finance Act 2020 included legislation to maintain the main rate of UK corporation at 19%, rather than reducing it to 17% from 1 April 2020. The change to the main rate of corporation tax was substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and therefore included in these financial statements. Temporary differences have been remeasured using these enacted tax rates that are expected to apply when the liability is settled or the asset realised.

The UK Budget 2021 announcements on 3 March 2021 included an increase to the UK's main corporation tax rate to 25%, which is due to be effective from 1 April 2023. These changes were substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and hence have been reflected in the measurement of deterred tax balances where applicable.

	2022	2021
Deferred tax	£' 000	€, 000
Deferred tax liabilities:		
Deferred tax liability to be settled after more than 12 months	(7,584)	(7,311)
Deferred tax liability to be settled within 12 months	(1,066)	(1,544)
	(8,650)	(8,855)
Net deferred tax liability	(8.650)	(8,855)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis. The table above sets out the analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes.

The deferred tax position is analysed below:		Accelerated capital allowances		Accrued Interest charges	Other	Total
	Acquired intangibles		Tax losses			
	£' 000	£, 000	£' 000	£, 000	£, 000	£, 000
1 February 2020	(11,611)	(46)	611	-	. 202	(10,844)
Acquired in acquisition	(2,750)	-	-		-	(2,750)
Movement	1,022	(1)	938	2,482	504	4,945
Foreign exchange	•	•		-	· (206)	(206)
31 January 2021	(13,339)	(47)	1,549	2,482	500	(8,855)
Movement	830	189	(627)	(732)	507	167
Foreign exchange	- -	<u> -</u>		-	38	38 ;
31 January 2022	(12,509)	142	922	1,750	1,045	(8,650)

Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences, and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which they are realised. The rates enacted or substantively enacted by the UK Government for the relevant periods of reversal are 19% (2021: 19%). The rates enacted by the US Government for the relevant periods of reversal was 26% from 22 December 2017.

Due to the uncertainty of recoverability, deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses, depreciation in excess of accelerated capital allowance and deductible temporary differences of £NiI (2021: £1.8m) have not been recognised.

Deferred tax on intangible assets relates to a deferred tax liability raised on separately identified intangible assets recognised as part of the acquisition of the Harvey Nash Group. The balance is released proportionately in line with the amortisation of the underlying intangible assets. £830k was released during the period. The acquisition of Latitude36.Inc on 20 October 2020 resulted in an additional deferred tax liability raised on intangible assets amounting to £2.6m.

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

14. Dividends

The dividends paid in the period were £1.2m (2021: £0.6m). This amounted to 1.68p per share (2021: 0.77p per share). No dividends were proposed subsequent to period end.

•	•							
· ·			•				. 2022	2021
						<u> </u>	£, 000	£, 000
Dividends declared and paid during the peri	od	•					1,235	562
					. ,			
•					•			
15. Intangible assets	Customer	, Brand:	Brand:	Brand:	Brand:	Brand:	Internally developed	
		Harvey Nash	Alumni	TalentiT	Nashtech	Latitude 36	software	. Total
	€, 000	£' 000	· £' 000 ·	€, 000	. £, 000	£' 000	£, 000	£' 000
Cost				• •			•	• • • •
At 1 February 2020 .	. 49,300	6,100	1,600	· `700	1,400		1,000	60,100
Acquisitions	.12,815	• -	•	-		281	-	13,096
At 31 January 2021	62,115	6,100	1,600	700	1,400	281	1,000	73,196
Acquisitions		-	-		-			· -
At 31 January 2022	62,115	6,100	1,600	700	1,400	281	1,000	73,196
Accumulated amortisation and impairment		•	:				4	•
At 1 February 2020	5,621	763	200	88	175	· -	208	7,055
Charge for the 12 month period	4,764	, 610	.160	70	140	. 168	167	6,079
At 31 January 2021	10,385	1,373	360	158	315	168	375	13,134
Charge for the 12 month period	5,564	610	. 160	70	. 140	113	167	6.824
At 31 January 2022	15,949	1,983	520	228	455	281	542	19,958
	<u> </u>							
Carrying amount								
At 31 January 2021	51,730	4,727	1,240	542	1,085	113	625 .	60,062
At 31 January 2022	46,166	4,117	1,080	472	945		458	53,238
		,						
								£' 000
Goodwill At 1 February 2020	•							58,577
Acquisitions								17,666
At 31 January 2021 as previously stated	•							76,243
rior period adjustment (Note 32)								(6,178)
At 31 January 2021 as restated		•		•				70,065
Remeasurement					•	-		
At 31 January 2022								(502)
TO CONTRACT TO CON		•		· ·	-			69,563
ntangible assets (including goodwill)	·				· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			
At 31 January 2021 (as restated)								130,126
At 31 January 2022			4					122,801

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

15. Intangible assets continued	,		
The carrying amounts of goodwill at acquisition and at period end allocated by cash-generating unit ('CGU') are as follows:		2022	As Restated 31 January 2021
Goodwill		£, 000	€' 000
Tech Recruitment - UK & Ireland		30,762	30,762
Tech Recruitment - Belgium		11,700	11,700
Tech Recruitment - Netherlands		7,525	7,525
Tech Recruitment - Central Europe		1,803	1,803
Tech Recruitment - USA		10,986	11,488
Leadership Services - UK & Ireland		1,036	1.036
Leadership Services - Nordics		1,240	1,240
Solutions - Nashtech		4,511	4,511
	,	69,563	70,065

During the period the goodwill in respect of each CGU was tested for impairment in accordance with IAS 36 'Impairment of Assets'. All CGU's were assessed to have a value-in-use in excess of their respective carrying values, thus no impairment adjustments to goodwill were considered necessary.

The assumptions applied in the impairment review are consistent with those applied within the Group's long-term strategic plan, approved by management and the Board. The assumptions are based on latest industry forecasts and the expectations of management given their past experience. The key assumptions in the value-in-use calculations are disclosed below.

	Average growth rat years	e in first five	Long-term growth rate		
Significant cash-generating unit	2022	2021	2022	2021	
Tech Recruitment - UK & Ireland	12.7%	22.0%	2.9%	0.5%	
Tech Recruitment - Belgium	18.6%	19.7%	2.5%	0.9%	
Tech Recruitment - Netherlands	17.4%	21.6%	2.1%	1.4%	
Tech Recruitment - Central Europe	(13.1%)	36.1%	2.7%	1.3%	
Tech Recruitment - USA	19.8%	19.7%	4.4%	2.5%	
Leadership Services - UK & Ireland	11.3%	42.2%	2.9%	0.4%	
Leadership Services - Nordics	22.2%	30.7%	4.4%	2.3%	
Solutions - Nashtech	31.4%	12.9%	3.7%	2.4%	

The full five year average has been utilised for all cash generating entities. The terminal growth rate is based on the long-term growth rate for each country and was on average 3.2% (2021: 1.5%). Management believes the forecasts are achievable.

Management has taken the current economic downturn as a result of Covid-19 into account and has applied an additional sensitivity percentage to ensure that Goodwill does not need to be impaired should there be a further downturn.

The pre-tax discount rate used was based on the industry weighted average cost of capital for each country and was on average 15.5% (2021: 20.3%).

The Group has carried out a sensitivity analysis on the impairment tests of each cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated. Based on this analysis management believes any reasonable changes in the key assumptions used in the impairment model would not result in any material impairment charge being recorded in the financial statements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

•			Leasehold Improvements	Office Equipment	Furniture, fixtures and equipment	Computer equipment	Motor vehicles	Total :
v .	• •		£, Ó00	£, 000	£' 000	£' 000	£, 000	£, 000
Cost							***************************************	
At 1 February 2020		•	3,799 °	716	1.846	10,730	16	17,107
Additions			109	63	44	2,145·	•.	2,361
Acquisitions			-	-	194	<u>.</u> .	-	194
Disposals			(1)	(22)	(4)	(492)	•	(519)
Exchange adjustments .	•	•	(11)	(38)	8	80	1	40
At 31 January 2021			3,896	719	2,088	12,463	17	19,183
Additions			183	125	9	2,343	•	2,660
Disposals .			(1,438)	(402)	(94)	(1,808)		(3,742)
Exchange adjustments	٠		. (13)	(29)	(7)	59	1	. 11
At 31 January 2022	, •		2,628	413	1,996	13,057	18	18,112
Accumulated depreciation	:							
At 1 February 2020		•	2,253	550	1,532	7,041	16	11,392
Charge for the year	,		485	92	160	1,459	-	2,196
Acquisitions			<u>:</u> ·	· -	151	. 23	-	1.74
Disposals ,			· (1)	(10)	(12)	(433)	-	(456)
Exchange adjustments	•	•	(1)	(10)	(10)	79	1	59
At 31 January 2021		•	2,736	622	1,821	8,169	17	13,365
Charge for the year	•	•	389	90	143	1,502	-	2,124
Disposals			(1,470)	(397)	(92)	(1,622)	-	(3,581)
Exchange adjustments		,	(5)	(16)	(9)	48	1	19
At 31 January 2022	•	•	1,650	299	1,863	8,097	18	11,927
Carrying amount								
At 31 January 2021	•		1,160	97	267	4,294	. ·	5,818
At 31 January 2022			978	114	. 133	4,960	-	6,185

On 20 October 2020 the Group acquired 100% of Latitude 36 Inc. As a result under IFRS 3: Business combinations the Group acquired all property, plant and equipment as at that date.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited Accounts 2022

Financial Statements

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

17. Leases under IFRS16	Right of use assets
	- Property £' 000
Cost	
At 1 February 2020	. 18,208
Additions	2,416
Acquisitions	1,124
Exchange adjustments	7 293
At 31 January 2021	22,041
Additions	5,520
Disposals	(10,142)
Exchange adjustments	(595)
At 31 January 2022	. 16,824
	3,024
Accumulated depreciation	
At 1 February 2020	7,452
Charge for the year	. 4,959
Exchange adjustments	, 15
At 31 January 2021	12,426
Charge for the year	4,824
Disposals	. (10,023)
Exchange adjustments	(303)
At 31 January 2022	6,924
Carrying amount	•
At 31 January 2021	9,615
At 31 January 2022	9,900
The carrying amount of the lease liability is as follows:	
£' 0	000 £, 000
Lease liability	•
Opening balance 9,90	
Additions 5.52	, 1
Acquisitions (12	
Lease payments (5.00	
Interest incurred 27	
Exchange adjustments (30	
Closing balance 10,2	9,907
Current 7,80	07 6,164
Non-current 2,47	
Total 10,2	

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

18. Trade and other receivables

	2022	2021
	£, 000	£. 000
Trade receivables	109,795	102,658
Less: Provision for estimated credit loss	(790) .	(1,046)
	, 109,005	101,612
Other receivables	4,251	2,774
Prepayments	2,841	2,721
Accrued income	47,949	47,783
	164,046	154,890

Debtor days were 35.2 days (2021: 33.4 days). Debtor days are calculated by reference to outstanding debtors relative to amounts invoiced in the preceding months up to the year end.

Trade receivables that are less than three months past due are not considered impaired. As of 31 January 2022, trade receivables of £38.5m [2021: £40.5m] were aged over 30 days but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

					:	2022	2021	
						£, 000		€. 000
1-2 months				,		23,675		18,945
2-3 months						9,827	u u	12,496 `
Over 3 months					•	4,974		9,041
	*		•	•	•	38,476		40,482

As of 31 January 2022, trade receivables of 0.79m (2021: £1.05m) were impaired and provided for.

The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to customers who are in difficult economic situations. All the impaired receivables are more than three months overdue. In the current period, the creation and release of provisions for impaired receivables have been included in 'administrative expenses' in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. The other classes within trade and other receivables do not contain impaired assets.

Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

Provisions				•	•			£' 000
At 1 February 2020		,			-	``		. 1,178
Acquired on acquisition			·	•				· 38
Provision raised during the period					•			(170)
At 31 January 2021		•		•		•	•	1,046
Provision utilised during the period			•					(256)
At 31 January 2022							•	790

Nash Sauared Holdings Limited

Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

18. Trade and other receivables continued

	Current 30-60 days		60-90 days	90+ days	Total
. •	£, 000	£' 000	£' 000	€ 000	£. 000
Default rate	0.00%	1.25%	2.50%	. 5.00%	 .
Gross carrying amount	71,318	23,676	9,827	4,974	109,795
Lifetime expected credit loss	•	(295)	(246)	(249)	(790)
	71,318	23,381	9,581	4,725	109,005

The Group has applied the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of receivable listed above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security. The currency profile of trade and other receivables is shown below.

					•	2022	2021
		:				£, 000	£' 000
Sterling						43,039	38,488
Euro	,					85,736	87,702
US Dollar			•			24,839	18,837
Other currencies						10,432	9,863
	`		ţ			164,046	154,890

The directors consider the above trade and other receivables to be reflected at fair value.

19. Cash and cash equivalents

						2022	2021	
			•		• .	·	€, 000	€' 000
Bank balances	-	٠					30,200	21,673
Petty cash						٠.	21	11
Total	<u> </u>	. ,					30,221	21,684

20. Trade and other payables

		£, 000	£, 000
Trade payables		68,267	69,283
Other tax and social security payable		24,919	17,025
Accruals		61,872,	62,213
Other payables		2,038	.1,344
		157,096	149,865

The directors consider the above trade and other payables to be reflected at fair value.

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

21. Provisions

continued

	•			2021
• .			£' 000	. £, 0Ó0
Opening Balance			-	304
Utilised in the period	<u> </u>		-	(304)
Closing balance			•	-

All provisions were utilised within the 12 months ended 31 January 2021.

22. Share capital	`			
: ·			2022	2021
		ž	£' 000	€ 000
Allotted and fully paid				
73,323,183 (2021: 73,323,183) ordinary shares of 0.001 pence each			1 ,	1

During the year ended 31 January 2021 10,000,000 shares at a nominal value of 0.001 pence each were issued. The premium arising on issue was £10m.

23. Other reserves

Fair value and other non-distributable reserves of £15.4m (2021: £15.4m) remain unchanged in the current financial period and include £2.8m relating to a capital contribution movement as part of the historic share reduction exercise, £11.9m related to the fair value of the investment as part of the acquisition under IFRS3 and the remaining £0.6m related to the movement in fair value of contingent considerations outstanding, all of which took place in prior financial periods.

Other distributable reserve consists of £67.9m (2021: £67.9m) relating to the transfer from share capital and share premium as a result of the share reduction undertaken in a prior financial period.

Cumulative translation reserves for the year amounted to £2.22m in deficit (2021: £3.3m in deficit).

24. Retained earnings

	£. 000 °
At 1 February 2020	(9.124)
Profit for the year	4,309
Dividends paid	(562)
At 31 January 2021	(5,378)
Profit for the year	13,100
Dividends paid	(1,235)
At 31 January 2022	6,487

Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

25. Group undertakings and related party transactions

Group undertakings	• •		2022	2021
Included in loans from group undertakings are the follo	Jary 2022	€, 000	£' 000	
Loans rece <u>i</u> vable	•			
DBAY Funds	•	• •	1	1
The Power of Talent Midco Limited			994	844
		•		
Loans payable			•	•
The Power of Talent Midco Limited	•		.(1.112)	(912)

DBAY Advisors and DBAY Funds are considered related parties due to their investment in and control of the Group's ultimate parent The Power of Talent Topco Limited.

26. Subsidiaries

The Group consists of a parent Company, Nash Squared Holdings Limited, incorporated in the UK and registered in England and Wales, and a number of directly and indirectly held subsidiaries around the world.

All subsidiary companies are consolidated.

At 31 January 2022 the Group was a wholly owned subsidiary of The Power of Talent Karlanesi Ltd (company number: 11665541) incorporated and registered in England and Wales.

The ultimate parent of the Group is The Power of Talent Topco Limited (company number: 132333C) incorporated and registered in the Isle of Man, and which prepares consolidated accounts.

The ultimate controlling party is DBAY Advisors Limited (company number: 126150C) incorporated and registered in the Isle of Man.

A full list of the Company's subsidiaries at 31 January 2022 is shown on pages 52 - 53.

27. Pensions

The Group operates separate defined contribution pension schemes in all locations. The Group's total contribution to such schemes for the 12 month penade and all January 2022 was £3.2m (2021: £3.1m).

The Group's largest pension scheme is a defined contribution scheme provided by Scottish Widows in the UK. Employer and employee contributions to the scheme range between 4% and 5% depending on the employee's length of service.

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

28. Leases

Leases classified under IFRS 16 "Leases'

On adoption, the Group applied a modified retrospective approach under which right-of use assets are recognised and initially measured at the same amount as lease liability on the date of initial application. IFRS 16 leases are disclosed within note 17.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of lease payments, discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate. The lease term comprises the non-cancellable period of the contract, together with periods covered by an option to extend the lease where the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option. Subsequently the lease liability is measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability, and reducing it by the lease payments made. The lease liability is remeasured when the Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or termination applion.

Lease liabilities are shown separately on the consolidated balance sheet in current liabilities and non-current liabilities.

	2022	2022
	£' 000	. £' 000
Current-liabilities - leases	7,807	6,16,4
Non-current liabilities - leases	2,472	3,743
	10,279	9,907

The Group has elected to apply exemptions for short-term leases and leases for which the underlying asset is of low value. For these leases the lease payments are charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating lease commitments

The Group has total future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases for each of the following periods:

•	,			2022	2022
				Property	Vehicles, plant and equipment
,				£, 000	€, 000
Minimum lease payments under non-cancella	ble operating leases:		•		
Within one year				63	744
Later than one year and less than five years			•	-	676
				. 63	1,420
29 Loan receivable					, .
Nash Technologies GmbH	,		,		
-	• •			2022	. 2021
	•			£, 000	£, 000
Opening balance				1,934	1,934
Foreign exchange		•	•	· (10)	-
Closing balance	*		•	1,924	1,934

The Group has a £1.9m (€2.3m) loan receivable from Nash Technologies GmbH included within non-current assets. The rate of interest is three-month EURIBOR plus 1.5%. The loan is due to mature on 30 June 2025.

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

30 Financial instruments

The Group's financial instruments comprise cash, bank overdraft, invoice discounting and various items such as trade receivables and trade payables that arise directly from its operations. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities is approximately equal to their book values.

Additional disclosures are set out in the accounting policies relating to risk management. An explanation of the role that financial instruments have had during the period in the management of the Group's funding liquidity and foreign exchange is provided within note 4.

In accordance with IFRS 9 "Financial Instruments", the Group has reviewed all contracts and confirmed that none contain embedded derivatives that are required to be assessed and measured as per the requirements set out in the standard. There were no material embedded derivatives at 31 January 2022.

Borrowing facilities

Invoice discount facility

At 31 January 2022 the Group has a syndicated invoice discounting facility of £90m. This facility is allocated across the Group's operations as follows: £38m in the UK (Harvey Nash: £31m, Crimson: £3m, Nashtech: £4m), EUR equivalent of £3.75m in Ireland, EUR equivalent of £30m in the Netherlands, EUR equivalent of £8.25m in Belgium and the USD equivalent of £10m in the USA.

The overdraft facilities are repayable on demand and the invoice discounting facilities are available on a rolling 12-month basis. The rates on all facilities are floating. All conditions precedent to the overdraft and invoice discounting were met at 31 January 2022.

•			•			
		2022	2022		2021	2021
Drawn borrowing facilities (current)	į	'000	£'000		.000	£'000
Invoice discounting facilities – UK	£	17,985	17,985	£	15,836	15,836
Invoice discounting facilities - Ireland	€ '	(150)	(125)	. €	(687)	(608)
Invoice discounting facilities – Belgium	€	3,095	.2,578	. €	3,432	3,039
Invoice discounting facilities – Netherlands	€	15,287	12,734	€	14,007	12,404
Invoice discounting facilities – USA	\$	5.152	3,837	\$	4,174.	3,046
Invoice discounting facilities – Crimson	£	(141)	(141)	£	82	82
Total			36,868			33,799

	2022 .		2022		2021	2021
Undrawn borrowing facilities		'000	€'000		'000	€'000
Invoice discounting facilities – UK	£	17,015	17,015	£	19,164	19,164
Invoice discounting facilities – Ireland	· •	. 4,652	3,875	. €	6,333	5,608
Invoice discounting facilities – Belgium	. €	6,809	5,672	€ .	7,296	6,461
Invoice discounting facilities – Netherlands	· •	20,727	17,266	€	19,870	17,596
Invoice discounting facilities – USA	\$	8,277	6,163	\$	6,104	4,454
Invoice discounting facilities – Crimson	£	3,1,41	. 3,141	£	2,918	2,918
Total			53,132			56,201

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued '

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

30 Financial instruments

Borrowing facilities

continued

As at 1 February 2021 the Group had a senior finance facility of £25.8m comprising of three term loans "A", "8" and "C". Term loan "A" is repaid in quarterly instalments until termination date (31 October 2023), term loan "B" remains at £10m until termination date (9 November 2023) and term loan "C" is partly repaid in quarterly instalments with a final repayment on termination date (31 October 2023). The loans accrue interest at Libor plus 4%, Libor plus 4.5% and Libor plus 4.25% respectively and are paid quarterly.

	v	•		2022	2021
Senior finance debt	•			£' 000	£' 000
Opening balance	•			21,752	. 17,900
Additions				· -	. 5,769
Repayments				(3.308)	(1,917)
Closing balance	•	•	•	18,444	21,752
Current		*	 	3,309	3,309
Non-current .	ì			15,135	18,443

•			2022	As Restated 2021
Other loans		•	£' 000	£, 000
Opening balance				· -
Additions			·	. 5,828
Restatement (Note 32)	•			(5,828)
Closing balance				•

31 Deferred consideration

	r		2022	2021
		•	£' 000	€, 000
Opening balance			13,834	687
Acquisitions		•		14,101
Fair value gain on contingent consideration	•	·	-	19
Net working capital adjustment			(502)	
Consideration settled .			(6,736)	(194)
Foreign exchange .		1	162	(779)
Closing balance	•		6,758	13,834
Current .			6,758	7,190
Non-current	•		, -	6,644

Nash Squared Holdings Limited

continued

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

32. Prior period restatement

On 20 October 2020, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Latitude 36 Inc, a technology recruitment business with subsidiaries and offices in the United States of America and India for a consideration of £30.2m. On this date the transaction was identified under "IFRS3 – Business Combinations".

During the current financial period the Group has identified the following matter relating to the acquisition of Latitude 36 Inc for which the financial statements of 31 January 2021 have been restated.

US Government Paycheck Protection Program Ioan

Included within the identifiable net assets at acquisition date was a liability for a US government Covid Paycheck Protection Program Ioan (PPP Ioan), totalling £6,178,000

In June 2021, the loan was formally waived by the US Government. Due to the criteria required for the loan forgiveness being in existence at the acquisition date, the loan should not have been recognised on acquisition. Accordingly, the acquisition goodwill value has been reduced by an amount equal to the loan value. Associated foreign currency differences of £350,000 also led to a restatement of other comprehensive income reducing total comprehensive income from £3,386,000 to £3,036,000

The following table summarises the impact of the prior period adjustment on the financial statements of the Group.

				÷	As previously stated 2021		Restated 2021
					£, 000	£' 000	€' 000
Net assets							
Goodwill					76,243	(6,178)	70,065
Borrowings					(5,828)	5,828	-
			•		. 70,415	·(350)	70,065
Equity	, ′	,				**)	
Currency translation adjustments	· •			٠, ٠,	2,956	350	3,306

Company Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 January 2022

	•	2022	. 2021
<u> </u>	Notes	£' 000	£' 000
SSETS	-		
on-current assets	,		
nvestments	3	108,627	108,627
oans receivable from group undertakings	4	7,3,17	845
		115,944	109,472
Current assets	•		
ade and other receivables		267	267
ash and cash equivalents	• •	1	. 1
. *		268	268
otal assets	•	116,212	109,740
ABILITIES	· · · ·		
urrent liabilities			
ade and other payables	,	(2)	(2
orrowings	7 . ,	(3,309)	. (3,309
		(3,311)	(3,311
on-current liabilities			
опоwings		(15,134)	(18,443
pans payable to group undertakings	5	(11,616)	(1,055
		(26,750)	(19,498
otal liabilities	•	(30,061)	(22,809
et assets		. 86,151	86,93
эштү .	•		
ordinary shares	6	1	. 1
nare Premium	•	10,000	10,000
air value and other non-distributable reserves	•	14,751	14,751
ther distributable reserves		67,969	67,969
etained loss		. (6,570)	(5,790
otal equity.		86,151	86,931

The company financial statements on pages 48 - 51 were approved by the board and authorised for issue on its behalf by Chris Tilley.

C. Timey

Chris Tilley

Date: 26-May-22

Director

Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

	Share capital Share premlum		Fair value and other non- distributable reserves	Other distributable reserves	Retained earnings	Total
<u> </u>	£' 000	€, 000	∞ £' 000	£' 000	. £, 000	£, 000
Balance at 31 January 2020	1	· -	14,751	67,969	(4,802)	77,919
Loss for the period	•	-	-	-	(426)	(426)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the period	-	-	-		(426)	(426)
Shares issued during the period	-	10,000	•		-	10,000
Dividends paid	-			-	(562)	(562)
Balance at 31 January 2021	.1	10,000	14,751	67,969	(5,790)	86,931
Profit for the period	-	<u> </u>	•	-	455	455
Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the period	-	-	-		455	455
Shares issued during the period		•	•	-	-	-
Dividends paid	-	-	•	-	(1,235)	(1,235)
Balance at 31 January 2022	1	10,000	14,751	67,969	(6,570)	86,151

Nash Squared Holdings Limited

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

1. Significant accounting policies

The separate financial statements of the Company are presented as required by the Companies Act 2006. The Company meets the definition of a qualifying entity under Financial Reporting Standard ('FRS') 100, issued by the Financial Reporting Council ('FRC'). Accordingly, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 101 'Reduced Disclosure Framework' as issued by the Financial Reporting Council.

As permitted by FRS 101, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemptions available under that standard in relation to business combinations, share-based payment, financial instruments, capital management, presentation of a cosh-flow statement, standards not yet effective, impairment of assets and certain related party transactions.

Where required, equivalent disclosures are given in the Group accounts.

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, which is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for the goods and services. The principal accounting policies adopted are the same as those set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements except as noted below.

No critical judgements were applied in the parent company other those discussed in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Investments

Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less, where appropriate, provisions for impairment. Impairment reviews are conducted annually and whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's fair value less costs of sale and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a post-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. Assets are Grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).

2. Profit for the period

The profit for the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022 in the financial statements of Nash Squared Holdings Limited, the Company, was £0.5m (2021: loss £0.4m). As permitted by \$408 Companies Act 2006, no profit and loss account is presented in respect of the parent Company.

3. Investment in subsidiaries

				2022 2021		2021
Shares in Group undertakings				-	£, 000	£, 000
Opening Balance	•			,	108,627	98.627
Additions					-	10,000
Closing Balance	•		•	•	108,627	108,627

The directors consider that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets. The carrying value of the investments was tested against discounted future cash flows during the period. The forecasts were based on post-tax cash flows derived from the approved budget for FY2021 and the long-term strategic plan. Management considers that these forecasts are achievable. Should future cash flows be unable to support the carrying value, an impairment would be recognised.

A full list of subsidiary companies and branches owned directly or indirectly by the Company as at 31 January 2022 is presented on pages 52 - 53.

Financial Statements Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

Notes to the Company Financial Statements

For the 12 month period ended 31 January 2022

Loans receivable from group undertakings

▶ 51

•		,	2022	2021
· ·			€, 000	€. 000
Amounts owed by group undertakings	•	•	7,317	7,188

Amounts owed by Group undertakings are unsecured and may be paid by the borrower at any time unless otherwise agreed between Group undertakings. The interest is charged at a 2.5% margin over LIBOR in accordance with formal loan agreements between the parties. These are not expected to be repaid within the next 12 months.

Information on each loan is included in note 25 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

5. Loans payable to group undertakings

Amounts owed to group undertakings	11,616	7,397
	£, 000	€, 000
	2022	2021

Amounts owed to Group undertakings are unsecured and may be paid by the Company at any time unless otherwise agreed between Group undertakings. Interest is charged at a 2.5% margin over the bank base rate applicable in the jurisdiction of the lender, in accordance with formal loan agreements between the parties. These are not expected to be repaid within the next 12 months.

Information on each loan is included in note 25 of the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

6. Share capital

``		2022	2021
		€' 000	£, 000
Allotted and fully paid			
73,323,183 ordinary shares of 0.001 pence each		1 .	1

Further details are provided in the senior finance debt section of note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Nash Squared Holdings Limited

Full list of Subsidiaries

	•	% Holding	Principal activity
Jnited Kingdom			•
Noble Street, London EC2V 7EE		•	
darvey Nash Ltd		100%	· Recruitment consultancy
NashTech Ltd	•	100%	Software consultancy
•		•	*.
reland	•		
ower Ground Floor, 100 Mount Street, Dublin 2	•	10097	Post itment consultancy
larvey Nash (Ireland) Ltd		100%	Recruitment consultancy
NashTech Software Ltd	•	. 100%	Software consultancy
letherlands			
ndustrieweg 4, Maarssen, 3606 AS		•	
larvey Nash BV		100%	Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Newco BV	,	100%	Non-trading
darvey Nash Perspective BV	· .	100%	Recruitment consultancy
Sermany		•	
irafenberger Allee 337a-c 40235 Düsseldorf.			
arvey Nash GmbH		100%	Recruitment consultancy
lash Direct GmbH		100%	Recruitment consultancy
mpact Executives (Germany) GmbH		100%	Non-trading
		·	
elgium			
ieuwe gentesteenweg 21/3, 1702 Groot-Bijgaar	gen :	100%	Recruitment consultancy
larvey Nash IT Consulting NV	•	100%	Recruitment consultancy
carvey Nash NV			
esidentie Docklands, Indiëstraat 2, 2000 Antwerp	oen .	100%	Recruitment consultancy
Menka NV		100%	Recruitment consultancy
alent IT BVBA		100%	Recruitment consultancy
eam4Talent BVBA	·	100%	Procurement
ro-Cured BVBA	· ·	100%	·
witzerland		•	·
adenerstrasse 15, Postfach 8021 Zürich	,	,	
larvey Nash AG	•	100%	Recruitment consultancy
mpact Executives Holdings AG		100%	Non-trading
oland			
lokotowska 49, 00-542 Warsaw		/	
arvey Nash Alumni Sp. z o.o.	Warsaw	, 100%	* Recruitment consultancy
larvey Nash Technology Poland Sp. z o.o.	Warsaw	100%	Recruitment consultancy
lashTech Sp. z o.o.	Warsaw	. 100%	Software consultancy
			•
ndia			
-9-22/57/D/1 1st Floor BM, Birla Science Centre		ad 100%	: Recruitment consultancy
Harvey Nash Private Limited	Hyderabad		. Recommen consolidity

Full List of Subsidiaries of Nash Squared Holdings Limited continued

Full list of Subsidiaries

		% Holding	Principal activity
weden	•		
Vorld Trade Center, Kungsbron 1, Box 843, 101 36 Stockholm			
E Management AB		100%	Recruitment consultancy
larvey Nash Recruitment AB		100%	Recruitment consultancy
Harvey, Nash Services AB		100% .	Recruitment consultancy
PAT Management AB		100%	Recruitment consultancy
inland		•	
Unionsgatan 22, 00130 Helsinki	•	:	•
darvey Nash OY		100%	Recruitment consultancy
Norway			
laakon VII's Gate 6, 0161 Oslo			
Harvey Nash AS		100%	Recruitment consultancy
	<u> </u>		
Inited States of America	•		
700 Route 23 North, Suite 100, Wayne, NJ 07470			
Harvey Nash Inc		^ 100%	Recruitment consultancy
larvey Nash Holdings Inc	•	100%	Non-trading
BS Group Inc	,	100%	Non-trading
roadbay Networks Inc		100%	Non-trading
ech Discovery LLC	,	100%	Non-trading
uro Systems International Inc		100%	, Non-trading
Applied Concepts Inc		100%	Non-trading
cientific & Business Systems Inc		100%	Non-tradin
110, Crescent Centre Dr., Suite 120, Franklin, Tennessee 37067	•		
atitude 36 Inc	<i>r</i> .	100%	Recruitment consultance
apan		•	
okyo Square Garden 14F, WeWork, 3-1-1 Kyobashi, Chuo-ku, Tokyo, Japan	104-0031		•
lashTech Japan KK	,	1,00%	Software consultance
			•
/lefnam			•
64 Cong Hoa Street, Tan Binh District, Ho Chi Minh City		100%	Software consultance
Harvey Nash (Vietnam) Company Ltd	•	10070	· Johnware Consolianc
rifish Virgin Islands	•		•
O Box 957, Offshore Incorporations Centre, Road Town, Tortola			
larvey Nash Ltd (BVI)		100%	Non-trading
ingapore			
one Raffles Quay, North Tower, Level 25	•		•
arvey Nash Singapore PTE Ltd		100%	Non-trading
1 Robinson Road, #13-129			4
NashTech Singapore PTE Ltd		100%	Softwaré consultanc
			•
long Kong		er en	•
nit 1501, 15/F Henley Building, 5 Queen's Road Central, Central			

Offices

United Kingdom

London

3 Noble Street

London EC2V 7EE

Birmingham

4301 Waterside Centre

Birmingham Business Park

Birmingham 837 7YN

Birmingham (Spinks)

Somerset House

37 Temple Street

Birmingham B2 5DP

Birmingham (Crimson)

Birmingham Business Park

Kings Court, 2460 The Crescent

Birmingham B37 7YE

Manchester

31 Booth Street

Manchester M2 4AF

Newcastle

Hoults Yard, Walker Road

Newcastle-upon-Tyne

NE6 2HL

Leeds

Marshalls Mill, Marshall Street

Leeds LS11 9YE

Edinburgh

Waverley Gate

2-4 Waterloo Place

Edinburgh, EH1 3EG

Glasgow

1 West Regent Street

Glasgow G2 1RW

ireland

Dublin

Lower Ground Floor

100 Mount Street

Dublin 2

Belgium

Antwerp

Houtdok-Noordkaai

12 - 2030 Antwerpen

Brussels

Nieuwe Gentesteenweg 21/3

1702 Groot-Bijgaarden

Ghent

Huize Minne

Kortrijksesteenweg 62

9830 Sint-Martens-Latem

Netherlands

Utrecht

Industrieweg 4

3606 AS Maarssen

Groningen

Heresingel 19

9711 ER Groningen

Germany

Düsseldori

Grafenberger Allee 337a-c

40235 Düsseldorf

Berlin

c/o WorkRepublic, Kurfürstenstraße 87

10787 Berlin

Stuttgart

Tübinger Strasse 26

D-70178 Stuttgart

Munich

Leonrodstrasse 52

D-80636 München

Poland

Warsaw

Mokotowska 49

00-542 Warsaw

Finland

Helsinki

Unionsgatan 22

00130 Helsinki

Sweden

Stockholm

World Trade Center,

Kungsbron 1

Box 843, 101 36 Stockholm

Gothenburg

Korsgatan 3

411 16 Göteborg

Malmö

Gibraltargatan 7

211 18 Malmö

Norway

Oslo

Strandveien 50-

1366, Lysaker, Oslo

· Switzerland

7ürlch

Badenerstrasse 15

Postfach, 8021 Zürich

Denmark

Copenhagen

Lautrupsgade 7.

2100, Copenhagen

USA

. New Jersey

1700 Route 23 North

Suite 100

Wayne, NJ 07470

California

39465 Paseo Padre Parkway

Suite 3000

Fremont, CA 94538

Tennessee

810, Cresent Centre Dr.,

Suite 120

Franklin, Tennessee 37067

Australia

Sydney

Suite 14.02, Level 14

20 Hunter Street

Sydney NSW 2000

India

Hyderabad

5-9-22/57/D/1 1st Floor BM

Birla Science Centre Complex

Adarshnagar, Hyderabad

Vietnam

Hanoi

4F & 6F, HITC Building

239 Xuan Thuy Road

Cau Giay District, Hanoi

Ho Chi Minh City

e.town Building

364 Cong Hoa Street

Tan Binh District

Ho Chi Minh City

Danang

3rd Floor, Diamond Time Complex,

35 Thai Phien Road

Hai Chau District

Danang

Singapore

71 Robinson Road

#14-01

Singapore, 068895

Japan

Tokyo

Tokyo Square Garden 14F

WeWork

3-1-1 Kyobashi

Chuo-ku, Tokyo, 104-0031

Officers and professional advisers

Officers

Directors

Bev White

Gary Browning

Chris Tilley

Michael Haxby

David Morrison

Diederik Vos

Michael Branigan

Streisan Bevan

Adrian Gunn

Joanna Macleod

Secretary

Chris Tilley

Registered office

Nash Squared Holdings Limited

3 Noble Street

London EC2V 7EE

Registered number

11464274 (England and Wales)

Contact details

+44 (0) 20 7333 0033

info@nashsquared.com

www.nashsquared.com

Social Media



twitter.com/Nash_Squared



in linkedin.com/company/nash-squared/

Ultimate parent

The Power of Talent Topco Limited

Company number: 132333C

Registered in the Isle of Man

Professional advisers

Solicitors

Addleshaw Goddard LLP

60 Chiswell Street

London

EC1Y 4AG

United Kingdom

Independent Auditor

Deloitte LLP

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditor

2 New Street Square

London EC4A 3BZ

Principal bankers

National Westminster Bank plc

280 Bishopsgate

London EC2M 4RB